London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

hsf\/

hammersmith & fulham

Children and Education
Policy and Accountability
Committee

Agenda
Monday 3 July 2023 at 7.00 pm

Main Hall (1st Floor) - 3 Shortlands, Hammersmith, W6 8DA

Watch live on YouTube: youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham

MEMBERSHIP
Administration Opposition
Councillor Helen Rowbottom (Chair) Councillor Aliya Afzal-Khan

Councillor Daryl Brown
Councillor Mercy Umeh
Councillor Lucy Richardson

Co-optees

Eleanor Allen, London Diocesan Board for Schools
Nandini Ganesh, Parentsactive Representative
Nadia Taylor, Parent Governor Representative

CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott
Governance and Scrutiny
Tel 07776 672877
E-mail: david.abbott@Ibhf.gov.uk

This meeting is open to members of the public and the building has disabled access.
If you’d like to attend, please contact David.Abbott@Ilbhf.gov.uk

Date Issued: 23 June 2023
Iltem 6 Updated: 26 June 2023
Iltem 5 Updated: 28 June 2023



https://www.youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham
mailto:David.Abbott@lbhf.gov.uk

N - =
. .|,,,
3

Children and Education

Policy and Accountability Committee
Agenda - 3 July 2023

Pages
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item,
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless itis a
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or
as soon as it becomes apparent.

At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give
evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor must
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is
discussed and any vote taken.

Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration.
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest.

Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards
Committee.

MINUTES 4-8

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as an accurate record
and note any outstanding actions.

A YEAR OF YOUTH VOICE 9-20

This item presents some of the highlights and achievements of young
people involved in Youth Voice activities in Hammersmith & Fulham.

LOCAL SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP ANNUAL 21-60
REPORT

This item presents the Hammersmith and Fulham Local Safeguarding
Children Partnership (LSCP) Annual Report April 2021 — December
2022 for review and comment.



SUMMER IN THE CITY 2023 61 - 67

This item provides an update on the Council’'s Summer in the City
programme for 2023 that aims to deliver enriching activities and food for
young people in the school holidays.

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

To note the following dates of future meetings:
e 13 Nov 2023
e 29 Jan 2024
e 25 Mar 2024



Agenda Item 3

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Children and h&f\/
Education Policy and
Accountability
Commiittee

Minutes

Monday 27 March 2023

PRESENT

Committee members: Councillors Helen Rowbottom (Chair), Daryl Brown,
Lucy Richardson and Aliya Afzal-Khan

Co-opted members: Eleanor Allen (London Diocesan Board for Schools), Nandini
Ganesh (Parentsactive Representative) and Nadia Taylor (Parent Governor
Representative)

Cabinet Member
Councillor Alex Sanderson (Cabinet Member for Children and Education)

Guests
Henry Leak (NHS North West London)

Officers

Jacqui McShannon (Strategic Director of Children’s Services)

Peter Haylock (Operational Director for Education and SEND)

Georgina Herry (Lead Adviser for School Improvement)

Sarah Bright (Assistant Director, Commissioning)

Amana Gordon (Operational Director, Children and Young People’s Service)
David Abbott (Head of Governance)

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Mercy Umeh.

Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Alex Sanderson (Cabinet
Member for Children and Education).

Councillor Daryl Brown and Eleanor Allen joined the meeting online.

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 4



DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2023 were agreed as an accurate
record.

CO-PRODUCTION IN MENTAL HEALTH PROVISION FOR YOUNG PEOPLE

Henry Leak (NHS North West London) presented the report that set out the range of
co-production activity undertaken in relation to developing emotional wellbeing and
mental health provision for young people and how that feedback was reflected in the
way services were delivered

Councillor Lucy Richardson asked different services and organisations like MIND,
CAMHS, and schools communicated to avoid repetition. Henry Leak said the mental
health partnership group brought all partners together to create relationships,
facilitate information sharing, and ensure alignment on service creation and delivery.

Councillor Richardson asked if all of the available services were clearly set out
online. Henry Leak said they were, but they were testing a new template, similar to
the Local Offer, with Parentsactive and other service users.

Councillor Daryl Brown asked if schools taught children about emotional intelligence
and how to regulate their emotions. Peter Haylock (Operational Director for
Education and SEND) explained that most schools would have Personal, Social,
Health and Economic (PSHE) classes. There was also a traded offer of additional
support that schools could buy into. Amana Gordon (Operational Director, Children
and Young People’s Service) noted that the Attachment Aware Schools Programme
had launched recently, which aimed to ensure schools created the right environment
for children to self-regulate. Members requested more information and she agreed to
share an article from the staff newsletter covering the programme.

ACTION: Amana Gordon

Councillor Aliya Afzal-Khan asked how the effectiveness of mental health provision
was measured and what mechanisms were in place to drive improvement. Henry
Leak said they monitored uptake of services. Councillor Afzal-Khan said it would be
useful to see data on how many people were being helped and the measurements
for effectiveness.

Nandini Ganesh asked if the providers listed in Appendix 1 of the report were also
suitable for children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) and if
they dealt with behaviour issues. Henry Leak said not all of the providers did. They
would look for support from the inclusion service and CAHMS where necessary.
Nandini Ganesh asked if special schools had access to mental health services. Peter

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 5



Haylock said they had the same opportunities and used the services most effective
to them.

Eleanor Allen asked to what degree mental health affected poor attendance at
school. Henry Leak said mental health did have an impact on school attendance and
they had an attendance team that worked with schools on that. There was also a
toolkit for schools around emotionally based reasons for not attending.

Nadia Taylor noted she was involved in an applied research project on mental health
and neurodiversity at Imperial, and asked if schools would be willing to engage with
the project. Peter Haylock said he thought schools would be keen to be involved.
They agreed to discuss it further after the meeting.

ACTION: Nadia Taylor / Peter Haylock

Nandini Ganesh asked about emergency mental health support which was a
common problem for Parentsactive parents. Henry Leak said emergency support
was a complex area. There was a dynamic support register system in place. If
someone was at risk they were put on the register, partners would then discuss what
could be done to stop further deterioration.

The Chair asked if the right data was being collected across the various
organisations and services and how sophisticated the information flow was. She
asked if it was responsive to residents’ needs. Henry Leak said there was a system
covering North West London called WSIC or ‘Whole Systems Integrated Care’.
WSIC collated data from GPs, acute Trusts, adult social care and was used to track
anomalies like groups that weren’t accessing care where one would expect. He said
it was still early days for population health data, but now it was in place and being
built on and would be a key focus for future work.

The Chair asked if Council colleagues felt they had access to the right data. Sarah
Bright (Assistant Director, Commissioning) said they hadn’t had sight of the WSIC
data and would like to explore that. The Chair discussed how best to progress the
data issue. She saw value in improving data sharing between the Council and the
NHS and suggested the Council’s Business Intelligence team could help the NHS
evaluate investment and service effectiveness. She also highlighted co-production
as an area where the Council could support NHS North West London to realise a
common goal.

Sarah Bright noted that officers had a working group with the ICS and they could
look at sharing data in a systemic way. There was also a role for Public Health
regarding the JSNA. Henry Leak noted that Public Health already had access to
WSIC data. He said work was ongoing to ensure there were robust data agreements
in place which were being trialling in some areas.

ACTION: Sarah Bright /working group to progress data sharing agreement
RESOLVED

1. That the Committee noted the ongoing work and achievements to date.

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 6



SCHOOL PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR ACADEMIC YEAR 2021/22

Peter Haylock (Operational Director for Education and SEND) presented the report
with support from Georgina Herry (Lead Adviser for School Improvement).

Peter Haylock said he was very pleased with how schools have performed and
published outcomes continued to be above national averages at EYFS, Primary,
KS4 and KS5. The proportion of schools rated good or outstanding had also
improved since the report was published and now stood at 100%.

Councillor Lucy Richardson asked if the Council could do something to celebrate the
results with the borough’s Headteachers. Peter Haylock said the team were planning
an event in the summer.

Councillor Richardson noted the borough’s impressive figures for persistent non-
attendance, particularly against the national figure which had doubled since the
pandemic. She said it was worth looking into the reasons for this and spread practice
to other areas. Peter Haylock said the team had made funding available to support
schools and put systems in place to ensure children were in school.

The Chair said she hoped that national Government were looking to the borough and
the Education team as examples of good practice. Jacqui McShannon (Strategic
Director of Children’s Services) said officers met regularly with the Department for
Education and they did promote the borough and volunteer where appropriate.
Officers also liked the opportunity to learn from other Local Authorities.

Councillor Aliya Afzal-Khan congratulated the borough’s schools and the Education
team on such positive results. She highlighted the success of the Learning
Partnership and asked if it could offer support to struggling schools. Peter Haylock
said the Learning Partnership only ran in primary schools at present, though once
the partnership was more developed it may expand. He noted that there were
secondary headteacher meetings and other collaboration forums in place. He also
explained that secondary schools were all Academies and they tended to work
together in their Trusts.

Nadia Taylor asked if the move to Academies had improved schools. And if so,
which of them were better in the current arrangements. Jacqui McShannon said the
borough had a rich landscape of school provision and it was too complex to
generalise. One of hallmarks of Hammersmith & Fulham was the way that schools
worked together, both formally and informally to achieve the best results for the
borough’s children and young people.

Nandini Ganesh asked if the NEET (young people who were Not in Education,
Employment or Training) figures in the report included SEND pupils. Peter Haylock
said they did — they were tracked through the Education Health and Care Plan
(EHCP) casework team and other colleagues in the borough’s institutions.

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 7



Nandini Ganesh asked if falling rolls was still an issue for schools in the borough.
Peter Haylock said it was a concern for some schools as there had been a decrease
in the birth rate across London.

The Chair asked if there was learning to be taken from the impressive SEND
performance. Peter Haylock said the credit should go to schools and the work they
had put in behind the scenes including putting intervention plans in place and exam
preparation work. His team made sure SEND services could be accessed and
provided advice, guidance, and shared good practice with schools.

The Chair noted the low persistent absence figures and asked officers if they knew
why that was the case. Peter Haylock said there was a strong culture of achievement
in the borough’s schools which combined with better tracking meant the likelihood of
persistent absence was lower.

The Chair congratulated the borough’s schools and the efforts of the Education team
for their fantastic work.

RESOLVED

1. That the Committee reviewed and commented on the school performance
details in the report and the school improvement priorities identified.

2. That the Committee noted that outcomes should be viewed within the context
of the pandemic and the effect of school closures, pupil & staff absences, staff
well-being and the resulting effect of the pandemic on pupils’ social, emotional
and mental health.

6. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

The Committee noted the following dates of future meetings:

e 3 July 2023
e 13 November 2023
e 29 January 2024
e 25 March 2024
Meeting started: 7.00 pm
Meeting ended: 9.00 pm
Chair

Contact officer David Abbott
Governance and Scrutiny
Tel 07776 672877
E-mail: david.abbott@Ibhf.gov.uk

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 8



Agenda Item 4

LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM

Report to: Children’s and Education Policy and Accountability Committee
Date: 03/07/2023

Subject: A Year of Youth Voice

Report author: Phil Tomsett, Head of Family Hubs

Responsible Director:  Jacqui McShannon, Strategic Director of Children’s
Services

SUMMARY

The Youth Voice Strategy was coproduced with young people in Hammersmith &
Fulham and launched in June 2022. The PowerPoint presentation at appendix A
details some of the highlights and achievements of the young people involved in
activities in Hammersmith & Fulham. Some of the young people involved, the Youth
Mayor and members of the Youth Council and Youth Parliament will talk through
some of their achievements and experiences. Also contained within the slides is a
look forward to what is next on the agenda for young people in the coming year.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. For the Committee to note and comment on the report and slide presentation.

Wards Affected: All

Our Values Summary of how this report aligns to
the H&F Values
Building shared prosperity Youth involvement with the Council

helps to build a shared prosperity from a
younger age

Creating a compassionate council Working with and listening to the needs
of young people allows the Council to
deliver compassionate services that
meet their needs

Doing things with local residents, notto | Young people are part of coproduction
them initiatives to deliver services that work

Page 9



for them

Being ruthlessly financially efficient

Working with young people to design
and deliver services ensures we deliver
the right services and focus spend in the
right place

Taking pride in H&F

Our young people of H&F are
celebrated, and their achievements are
highlighted locally and nationally

Rising to the challenge of the climate
and ecological emergency

Climate and ecology are key issues for
young people and their voice drives the
Council to deliver for their future

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report

None

DETAILED ANALYSIS

1. The Committee are asked to note the contents of the Youth Voice slides.

2. The slides will be presented by members of the Youth Council and Youth
Parliament, who will talk about how they have been able to engage, influence
and shape what matters to them in Hammersmith & Fulham.

3. Some of the achievements and work that the young people have been involved

with includes:

e Part of the commissioning panel for the new youth services
contracts which began on the 1% April 2023

e Coproduced the Youth Voice Strategy

e Creation of multi media youth focused pages and streams

e Part of panels to interview Children’s Services staff

4. There is an exciting set of projects and programmes young people will be
involved with over the next year which includes:

LIST OF APPENDICES

Appendix A
A Year in Youth Voice slide deck

Youth led hackathon in November 2023
Coproduction of the Family Hubs in H&F
Healthy eating in White City

Joint training with the AOD board on inclusion.

Page 10



Appendix A

A Year of
Youth Voice

Presentation to CEPAC

3rd July 2023

Presented by:
Niamh Youth Mayor

Anastasia Member of Youth Parliament
Albi Youth Councillor
Ealaf Youth Councillor

With Phil Tomsett Head of Family Hubs
haf

hammersm ith & fulham



Just some... of the HIGHLIGHTS of 2022-23

Launch of the co-
produced Youth Voice
Strategy, Principles &
Priorities

Reaching out- through
multi-media and the
arts

Diverse youth panels
involved in
interviewing CHS staff

Calendar of Inclusive
Youth Voice Activities

Young people
influenced various
strategies, Arts &
Culture, Industrial &
Hate Crime

Youth Commissioning

Youth Voice Champion
Role adopted by
strategic boards and
partnerships

Increasingly diverse
and representative
Youth Council

Part of the assessment
panel for the new
Youth Contracts

Youth Achievement
Awards- Over 200
nominations and
community

sponsorship March 23 P
/
S\

Successful Youth
Cabinet Election- Over
3000 votes electing a
fabulous Youth
Cabinet!!

Mapping of youth
voice, ‘menu’ of
feedback and youth

voice central webpage

Developing Inclusive
Youth Voice Network

hammersmith & fulham



Have knowledge
about your own
rights?

Edit Profile

Ad Tools Insights




Arts & Culture Strategy
Workshops and Youth
Commissioning Panel

hsf\/

hammersmith & fulham






—
Youth Achievement Awards:
Event Management

THANK YCOU TO

£y Print Haommersmith GREEN

S0 W)

&ff‘\/

hammersmith & fulham




S

ammersmith & fulham

\3

%
2




Next *
eration

future Of pemocracy

Welcome

Ready, Steady, CONNECT! Launch Event

[l Mete Cgban ce” - Host, TV & Radio
[<J ceo & Fol ¥ Broadcaster
of My Li

1 Next
ation

s“,afzy Macal

pir
se Minister

»

[ 4

¢

-

-

Vi

Anasta:s,ia Odusanwo

London

[BEE PARLIAMENT
LA UK YOUTH PARLIAMENT

EDUCA1

Outh P " - J,
Wad::th Pasliament

ammersmith & fulham




Next Steps

Borough wide Deep
Dive research into
manifesto areas

Joint training with
AOD Youth Board on
Inclusion

Youth Led Hackathon
November 2023

SEND Strategy
Coproduction

Supporting Healthy Linking with Cabinet Supporting Coproducing the
Eating in White City- and corporate Coproduction of online information
project for teens priorities Family Hubs for young people

Further developing
Inclusive Youth Voice
Network- identified
champions to support
priorities

Strengthening
communication with
schools and links with
school councils

Youth led ‘virtual tour’
of sexual health
services.

Greater social media
presence

haf

hammersmith & fulham



N

HAF Youtlh

Reproeseonting thhe vierws Of Oour youna peonieo v 10 e 25 10

Youth Voice Instagram page

Edit Profie

Ad Tools Insights Add Shop
Woears L xpor Lt akilin ataty NMarmtal haalth Naw

For More information on Youth
Voice and Youth Voice Calendar
of Activities

sFS

hammersmith & fulham



https://www.instagram.com/h_f_youth/
https://www.instagram.com/h_f_youth/
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/children-and-young-people/young-people/hammersmith-fulham-youth-voice
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/children-and-young-people/young-people/hammersmith-fulham-youth-voice

Agenda Iltem 5
~ ~
. hsf>’

[ Worth West L
. North West London @ esbimiot e

Hammersmith & Fulham

Local Safeguarding
Children Partnership

Annual Report

April 2021 — December 2022




2 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Contents

Introduction 3
Independent Scrutiny/ role of the Chair 4
What is a local safeguarding partnership? 4
What is Safeguarding? 5
What is the structure of Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP? 5
LSCP Subgroups 7
Key information about Hammersmith & Fulham 8
Learning from LSCPR’s and Rapid Reviews 10
Serious Case Reviews 12
‘Adam’ Serious Case Review 12
‘David’ Serious Case Review 13
LSCP Activities and progress 14
Domestic Abuse 14
Safe and Together Model of Practice 14
Child Q 15
Neglect 16
Everyone's Invited 17
Awaab Ishak LSCP Response 19
Afghan Evacuees: Partnership Response 20
Children’s Mental Health 21
Safer Sleeping 22
Youth Voice 23
LSCP Learning & Development 25
Health 26
LADO Summary 27
Final thoughts from the Chair 28
Appendices

Appendix 1. LSCP Timeline of progress 30
Appendix 2: ‘David’ Serious Case Review A Case Study: ‘Logan’ 32
Appendix 3: Contact List for Housing Repairs for NHS professionals 34
Appendix 4: CCG Joint Funding-Training 36
Index 38

Page 22



Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 3

Introduction

As the Independent Chair of the Partnership, I am
pleased to present our first annual report which
covers an extended period from its formation on
1 April 2021 to 31 October 2022.

Formerly, Hammersmith & Fulham, joined together
with Kensington & Chelsea, and Westminster to
create the tri-borough Local Safeguarding Children's
Board (LSCB); becoming the three borough Local
Safeguarding Children Partnership (LSCP) in 2019.

The three borough LSCP arrangement ended on

31 March 2021. A new sovereign Local Safeguarding
Children Partnership was formed on 1 April, 2021

by Hammersmith & Fulham Council. A sovereign
partnership means better collaborative working and
focus on local issues, enabling the best outcomes for
our children and young people.

At this time, the impact of Covid was still widespread;
the Government introduced its latest lockdown on

4 January 2021 with all restrictions being finally lifted
in July 2021.

So, the Partnership was initially constrained by the
requirements of member agencies to cope with the
continuing Covid demands as well as creating new
governance arrangements to deliver our objectives
for local children.

The first few months of our existence focussed

on establishing effective organisational structures,
recognising our legal responsibilities under the s11

of the Care Act (local organisations and agencies
have a duty to ensure that they consider the need

to safequard and promote the welfare of children
when carrying out their functions). The other relevant
legislation is the Children and Social Work Actin 2017
and statutory guidance in Working Together 2018.

The responsibility for the strategic oversight of
these arrangements locally rests with the three
safeguarding partners (the Local Authority, the
Integrated Care Board, and the Police), who have a
shared and equal duty to arrange to work together to
safeguard and promote the welfare of all children in
alocal area. These arrangements and how they have
been implemented in Hammersmith & Fulham are
summarised in the first pages.

In compiling this report, | have taken note of the
guidance produced by the Child Safeguarding
Practice Review Panel: annual report 2021 which
was published on 15 December 2022.

It says too many local annual reports concentrate
on describing governance structures at the

expense of describing the impact of the partnership
arrangements in improving the lives of children. This
is commonly known as the 'so what?" question.

Accordingly, the report has been extended to cover
a 20 month period, since the first few months of our
existence centred on establishing such structures.

It focuses on what difference we have made by
considering themes raised in section 9 of the
Practice Review Panel annual report. (CSPR annual
report 2021).

As well as outlining our reactions to recent cases

of both local and national concern, the Partnership
inherited two Serious Case Reviews involving local
children, known as David and Adam, which were
commissioned by the previous tri-borough LSCB.
The report summarises our responses to both cases.

In conclusion, | believe that the Hammersmith &
Fulham Local Safeguarding Children Partnership
has made considerable progress since its inception.
Itis not possible to remove the risk of harm to
children and young people but | hope this report
demonstrates that our collective approach to
safeguarding has significantly reduced that risk and
has given better outcomes for our children and
young people of the borough.

Mike Howard
LSCP Chair




4 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Independent
Scrutiny/ role
of the Chair

The Safeguarding Partners agreed that the
Safeguarding Forum is led by an Independent Chair,
who also undertakes the role of the Scrutineer.

The current Independent Chair's contract was
extended for a further 12 months to 31 December
2023.

The Independent Chair’s role includes:

Appropriately challenging partner agencies and
professionals for the purposes of safeguarding
and promoting the welfare of local children and
young people.

Providing direction to the Safeguarding Forum
and ensuring statutory obligations and local
priorities are being delivered.

Overseeing the progression of case reviews to
ensure they meet required timescales.

Ensuring that key local issues and national
developments are considered by the Safeguarding
Forum.

Challenging and monitoring the performance
and participation of partners in the work of the
Safeguarding Forum.

Chair and agree the record of rapid reviews and
oversee the implementation of recommendations
and learning.

Examples of the Chair's challenge to partners
include:

Holding an extraordinary Forum meeting to
discuss the local response from the police to the
serious issues raised by Child Q.

A similar meeting to review the partners response
to neglect following the murders of Arthur
Labinjo-Hughes and Star Hobson.

Challenges to NHS England to expedite their
actions resulting from the David SCR.

These cases and a summary of the activities of the
Partnership are detailed in the timeline in: Appendix 1.

Whatis a local
safeguarding
partnership?

Local Safeguarding Children Partnerships (LSCPs) are
local safeguarding meetings where partners come
together across children and young people’s services
to identify subjects and themes which require a
safequarding response, and to address any key areas
of need through partnership working.

The purpose of these local arrangements is
to support and enable local organisations and
agencies to work together in a system whereby:

Children are safeguarded, and their welfare
promoted.

Partner organisations and agencies collaborate,
share, and co-own the vision for how to achieve
improved outcomes for vulnerable children.

Organisations and agencies challenge
appropriately and hold one another to account
effectively.

There is early identification and analysis of new
safeguarding issues and emerging threats.

Learning is promoted and embedded in a way
that local services for children and families can
become more reflective and implement changes
to practice.

Information is shared effectively to facilitate more
accurate and timely decision making for children
and families.

Page 24



Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 5

Whatis
Safeguarding?

Safeguarding children is the action we take to
promote the welfare of children and protect them
from harm. Safeguarding is everyone’s responsibility.
Every single person who comes into contact with
children and families has a role to play.

Child protection is part of safeguarding and refers to
the activity undertaken to protect children suffering
from, or at risk of, significant harm. (Working
Together to Safeguard Children 2018).

The NSPCC defines Safeguarding as “the action
that is taken to promote the welfare of children and
protect them from harm.

Safeguarding means:

Protecting children from abuse and maltreatment.

Preventing harm to children’s health or
development.

Ensuring children grow up with the provision of
safe and effective care.

Taking action to enable all children and young
people to have the best outcomes.

What is the structure
of Hammersmith &
Fulham LSCP?

The H&F LSCP has a 3-tiered structure comprising
of the Executive Board, attended by all three LSCP
strategic leads, the LSCP Forum which is a multi-
agency strategic meeting that is attended by senior
leaders, and the Safeguarding Children Partnership
Group (PG) the operational arm of the LSCP,
attended by practitioners and operational managers.

The Executive Board

The Executive board has statutory responsibilities
for setting the priorities for the LSCP, negotiating its
budget and resources. Its prime role is to safeguard
and promote the welfare of all children in H&F,
particularly those at the greatest risk of neglect from
the actions of other people.

Our priorities are:

Safeguarding adolescents, including children/
young people with disabilities.

Increasing awareness and strengthening the
response to domestic abuse .

Increasing awareness and strengthening the
response to mental health, with focus on child’s
mental health.

Transitional Safeguarding - the recognition that
the needs of young people do not change or
stop when they reach 18, although the laws and
services supporting them often do. Itis about
making sure they have the help they need to keep
themselves safe and as independent as possible.

The "Voice of the Child" to be woven through all
the priorities.

These priorities were developed through
consultation with partners and children in the
borough via the Partnership Group, and Forum.
They were heavily influenced by the priorities of local
young people priorities.

Page 25



6 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Next Steps:

The priorities were set for 3 years and will be
reviewed in 2024/2025.

The Forum:

The LSCP Forum, comprises of a core membership
of senior managers across the multi-agency
network, voluntary sector and lay members, and

is accountable to the Executive Board. The LSCP
Forum is responsible for driving and monitoring the
delivery of local safeguarding priorities set by the
Executive Board and seeks assurance on behalf of
the Executive Board that partners are fulfilling their
safeguarding responsibilities and making a positive
difference to children in the borough.

LSCP Executive Board
3 Strategic Leads & LSCP Chair

s LSCP LScP o
priorities ) ) priorities
and work Chair Scrutiny and work
LSCP
Forum
. . Quality,
Pag?gﬂ;h'p Case Review thsiigg]r%gn t Performance
(Operational) Group Advisory Group b Cgféljgge

Safeguarding Children Partnership
Group:

The Safeguarding Children Partnership Group is
accountable to the LSCP Forum and is chaired by the
Head of Safeguarding for Children’s Services.

There is a core membership of operational
managers and practitioners from across the multi-
agency network, including representatives from
the voluntary sector. The Partnership Group is an
operational partner collaboration that responds

to topical and local safeguarding issues arising
within frontline services and practice across the
multi-agency network, delivers on the priorities
and policies of the LSCP at the front line and acts
as a vehicle to influence the strategic direction and
priorities of the LSCP.

Associated
Strategic Partners

Violence Against
Women & Girls

YCPP Youth Crimes Prevention
Partnership

Community Safety
Partnership

Safeguarding Adults
Board

Health & Wellbeing Children’s Health, Education
Board & Social Care Partnership

Page 26



Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 7

LSCP Subgroups

Case Review Group

The Case Review Group is critical to the work of the
Safeguarding Partners in Hammersmith & Fulham.
Itis the key mechanism for carrying out reviews of
serious safeguarding cases that meet the criteria set
outin Chapter 4 Working Together 2018. Improving
child protection and safeguarding.

The Case Review Group meeting is chaired by the
Independent Chair and is responsible for:

Considering all serious incident cases

in Hammersmith & Fulham and making
recommendations to the Safeguarding Partners
for determining whether the criteria for a learning
review have been met.

ldentifying learning from serious incidents and
ensuring recommendations are acted upon.

Coordinating the arrangements on behalf of
the Safeguarding Partners for commissioning
and publishing local child safeguarding practice
reviews.

Developing the terms of reference for each
learning review, monitoring progress of local
reviews and developing improvement plans.

Sharing examples of good practice to develop
understanding of what works well.

The Case Review Group has a core membership
drawn from the statutory safeguarding partners and
relevant agencies. It has the flexibility to invite other
relevant professionals to discuss certain cases as

and when appropriate (including rapid reviews). The
Partnership held a rapid review in July 2022, into

the death of a child. It was agreed by the Executive
Board that the case did not need to be escalated into
a Local Practice Review. This decision was endorsed
by the Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel.

This group also monitors the implementation of
the actions and the impact of the responses by all
relevant agencies to the two SCRs; David and Adam.

Quiality, Performance and Challenge
Sub-group

Quality, Performance and Challenge Sub-group is
chaired by the Designated Nurse for Safeguarding
Children. This sub-group is responsible to the Forum
for:

Having oversight of multi-agency practice
through audit activity.

Reviewing how agencies work together to create
the right conditions for effective practice.

Evaluating how and where improvements are
needed.

Developing and implementing a programme
of multi-agency audits to evaluate safeguarding
practice, policies, and procedures across the
multiagency network.

Making multiagency practice recommendations
and disseminating the learning arising from
multiagency audits.

Monitoring implementation of recommendations
and actions arising from muiltiagency audits and
reviewing the impact.

Testing and monitoring multi-agency compliance
with Section 11 of the Children Act 2004
requirements.

Learning and Development Advisory
Group

The learning and Development Advisory Group is
responsible for:

Ensuring that multi-agency and single agency
training needs in Hammersmith & Fulham is
identified and that an effective multi-agency
training programme is delivered.

Promoting learning from safeguarding best
practice.

Promoting learning around identified local and
national priorities.

Promoting learning from local and national
learning reviews and audits.

Providing updates on the progress and the impact
of the multi-agency learning Offer.

Page 27



8 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Key information about
Hammersmith & Fulham

London boroughs situated in the central western part
of London on the transport routes between the City
and Heathrow airport. Itis a long, narrow borough
running north to south with a river border at its south
and south-west side. Itis bordered by six London
boroughs: Brent to the north; Kensington and
Chelsea to the east; Wandsworth and Richmond-
Upon-Thames to the south; and Ealing and
Hounslow to the west.

However, although there are pockets
of great wealth in the borough, there
are also areas of deprivation which
has a direct result on the health and
wellbeing of children. The Council
works in several different ways to
ensure that these most deprived
communities are reached and
supported to thrive.

This map shows the borough
profile of deprivation in
Hammersmith & Fulham.

Percentage ranking

B Within 10% most deprived
B 10-20%
[ 20-30%
] 30-40%
] 40-50%
50-60%
[ 60-70%

Source: loD 2019, Ministry of Housing,
Communities & Local Government

Children and young people from
multiple ethnic groups account for
32% of all children living in the area.
The largest multiple ethnic groups
of children and young people in the
area are Black or Black British and
Mixed. 32% of children under 18 are
living in poverty, and you can see
that most people living in poverty
are concentrated in the north of the
borough.

1046 children and young people
were identified as needing specialist support from
the local authority on 31 March 021. This is an
increase from 945 on 31 March 2020.

Page 28



Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 9

37,111 The number

of children currently
living in Hammersmith
- & Fulham. They

make up 20% of our

population
32% of this
E population are from
Black and Multiple 157 children were on
Ethnic Groups and 32% a Child Protection Plan
of children under 18 live
in poverty
1,885 Number of
referrals received into 216
the Hammersmith & children were
Fulham Initial Contact Looked After
Advice Team (ICAT)
¥ - X
1'4.'56 Child and 1,452 children are
FIT R on a Child in Need Plan
were completed
S~

*For purpose of report — data will cover April 2021 - March 2022.

100% of schools
rated Good or
Outstanding

by Ofsted

Page 29



10 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Learning from LSCPR's

The purpose of a Local Safeguarding Child Practice
Review (LSCPR) is for agencies and individuals to
learn lessons to improve the way in which they work
both individually and collectively to safeguard and
promote the welfare of children. Itis not an inquiry
into how a child died or was seriously harmed, or
into who is culpable. These are matters for coroners
and criminal courts, respectively, to determine as
appropriate.

The Children Act 2004 (as amended by the Children
and Social Work Act 2017) places a duty on local
authorities to notify serious incidents to the Child
Safeguarding Practice Review Panel.

The Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel holds
the key responsibility for how the system learns from
serious child safeguarding incidents at a national
level. The National Child Safeqguarding Practice
Review Panel meets regularly to decide whether to
commission national reviews of child safeguarding
cases that are notified to the panel. The panel's
decisions are based on the possibility of identifying
improvements from cases which it views as complex
or of national importance. Examples include the
National Panel's review into the cases of Arthur
Labinjo-Hughes and Star Hobson.

and Rapid Reviews

The key Practice Reviews that
Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP have
been focused on are:

Independent Review of Children’s Social Care.

National Panel's report into the tragic deaths of
Arthur Labinjo-Hughes and Star Hobson.

From national reviews, we recognise the additional
risk posed to children who are subject to neglect
and abuse from their parents and caregivers and
have worked to ensure local audits and findings are
shared amongst the multi-agency network. Learning
from child safeguarding practice reviews, both local
and national, shapes the work programme of the
H&F LSCP. Assurance is regularly provided on how
recommendations from previous safeguarding
reviews are being taken forward.




Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 11




12 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Serious Case Reviews

‘Adam’ Serious Case Review

Overview:

Adam was a 1/7-year-old young person, who was
born in London. His parents had migrated to the UK
from East Africa shortly before his birthday. He was
murdered by another teenager in a knife attack in
2019. This was due to an alleged drugs dispute.

An initial review of the facts pointed to possible
concerns about the way in which agencies had
worked together to safeguard his welfare and there
may be important learning for local agencies. The
report highlighted several themes and findings that
are reflective of serious youth violence cases.

Activity:

A Serious Case Review was commissioned in 2019
by the tri-borough LSCB.

The '‘Adam’ Serious Case Review was published in
July 2021 following the murder of Adam in March
2019.

After Adam’s murder, and before the publication of
the review, significant efforts and improvements
have been made across safeguarding agencies in
response to serious youth violence.

An action plan was developed which addressed the
key findings and were grouped into themes.

Colleagues in Health, Police, Children’s Services and
Community Safety have been actively reviewing
policies, interventions, writing guidance and putting
support in place to minimise the risk of Youth
Violence.

This murder, and several other serious assaults, led to
the creation of the Gangs Violence and Exploitation
Unit, which operates across a multi-agency network
which includes the Local authority, Community
Safety, and the Metropolitan Police. This unit has
streamlined processes and interfaces with all key
agencies to ensure a joined-up service approach to
support intelligence led disruption and community
safety interventions.

There is also an ongoing task and finish group,
with a multi-agency membership, reviewing family
relocation when there is a safeguarding risk from
serious youth violence. Itis anticipated the findings

from this task and finish group will be available later in

2028

Extensive feedback has been received from
safequarding partners, which has contributed to a
comprehensive action plan aimed at demonstrating
how partner agencies work differently with young
people who face similar risks as Adam.

Outcomes Achieved:

Improved understanding of the consequences of
relocating a young person and their family and
impact on their safety and tenancy.

An assessment matrix has been developed that
supports practitioners to better assess risk.

Pathways into education, employment or
training have been identified and young people
are encouraged and supported to participate in
these.

Gangs, Violence and Exploitation Unit (GVEU)
established.

Issues or concerns can be identified at the
earliest stage, which is key to improving
outcomes for young people.

Implemented different approaches in their work
with children and young people such as systemic
practice, relational based interventions, and
trauma informed approaches.

Impact:

A case study has been developed that demonstrates
the impact of the changes implemented following
the Serious Case Review.

Page 32



Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 13

‘David’ Serious Case Review

Overview:

A young person who was looked after by
Hammersmith & Fulham Children’s Services,
committed a serious assault on a young child in
August 2019. The child suffered life changing injuries
as a result of being thrown from a public building in
London.

Activity:

As a result of this serious assault, the ‘David’ Serious
Case Review was commissioned by the tri-borough
Local Safeguarding Children Partnership and the
review was published in April 2021.

This complex review identified a range of findings
and recommendations, which safequarding partners
developed into an action plan. Since publication,

the LSCP has worked with the key partners to
ensure the recommendations and actions are
implemented, what actions have been taken to date
and to review the progress made and ensure that
recommendations have been followed up.

There has been a system review of pathways for
children with autism, learning disabilities, and mental
health needs, co-produced with young people

and their parents. This led to the development of

an Intensive Behaviour Support System, and the
development of a Dynamic Support Register in
Hammersmith & Fulham, which is viewed as a
national exemplar.

A collaborative, multi-agency review has delivered

a joint accountability framework to ensure clear
pathways, agency responsibilities, quality assurance
process and escalation in relation to children with
autism, learning disabilities and mental health needs
resident in H&F and those placed out of borough.

Operation Cavell ensures, where appropriate,
assaults against professionals by young people are
addressed through the criminal justice system and
was rolled out across the local police command as
good practice.

Next Steps:

Efforts are now focused on delivering the learning
opportunities with support from NHS England and
NHS Improvement. Oliver McGowan training will
gradually be rolled out into 2022-2023 across the
Health and Social care settings in the first instance.
Wider roll out will follow as resources allow in due
course.

Specialist training will be delivered by clinicians from
Broadmoor which will focus on Autism, risk and
emerging personality disorders.

An overview and key learning points from the David
Serious Case Review Webinar will be disseminated
out across several different service areas.

Outcomes and Impact:

To fully demonstrate how important and ground-
breaking this collective activity has been, a case study
(Logan’) has been developed that demonstrates

the learning from the David SCR in action across

the multi-agency partnership see Appendix 4. This
has contributed to robust risk management and
improved outcomes for ‘Logan’. Ways of working
were adjusted to accommodate the change in
practice and enabled them to respond differently to a
young person with a similar presentation to David.

Page 33



14 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

LSCP Activities and
progress

Domestic Abuse

H&F LSCP works closely with partners to ensure that
the issue of domestic abuse is prominent on our
agenda, and that there is a coordinated approach
across the partnership. This is to ensure better
outcomes for victims and their families. Work has
also focused on perpetrators via the rolling out of the
Safe and Together model of practice in Children's
Services to strengthen the response within the

child protection system. The recent new legislation
contained in the Domestic Abuse Act highlights the
impact on children who experience domestic abuse
and recognises them as victims for the first time.

The Act places a duty on local authorities to
support all victims of domestic abuse in safe
accommodation. The Act also aims to support the
survivor of domestic abuse and places additional
measures within criminal courts to enable improved
conviction and establish safety measures. This
includes granting powers to senior police officers to
give a domestic abuse protection notice against a
perpetrator where there are reasonable grounds to
believe they have been abusive towards the victim
and the notice is necessary to protect the victim.

As concerns with domestic violence and abuse
continue, work of the Pathfinder Project ‘whole
health” approach to tackling domestic abuse
brought together expertise and funding for specialist
domestic abuse interventions. Pathfinder built on
existing good practice in our 8 sites by joining up the
efforts of local health partners from acute health,
mental health and primary care with local domestic
abuse specialist services. Professional healthcare
colleagues helped to embed governance and
policies, coordination, data collection, specialist

interventions and training to build the capacity of
the local health systems to respond to survivors of
domestic abuse. This is led by the health economy
in H&F and is chaired by the Designated Nurses
for safeguarding. The purpose being to establish
comprehensive health practice approach to
domestic abuse in acute hospital trusts, mental
health trusts and community based IRIS programmes
in GP practices. This will focus on training, data
collection, policy, domestic abuse champions and
ensuring that there are robust referral pathways.

Safe and Together Model
of Practice

First developed in the United States, this
internationally recognised suite of tools and
interventions is designed to help services who work
with children and families improve their awareness
and understanding of domestic abuse. The modelis
based on three key principles:

Keeping children Safe & Together with their
non-abusive parent, ensuring safety, healing from
trauma, stability, and nurturing.

Partnering with the non-abusive parent as a
default position ensuring efficient, effective, and
child-centred practice.

Intervening with the perpetrator to reduce the
risk and harm to the child through engagement,
accountability, and criminal justice.

Hammersmith & Fulham are committed to shift
the culture and practice of children’s social care to
strengthen their response to domestic abuse and
enable practitioners to have greater confidence

in challenging the perpetrator and holding them

to account. The roll out of the training has already
begun and it will be monitored to measure success.

The National Panel circulated a briefing on Domestic
Abuse in September 2022. It set out key findings
from a thematic analysis of rapid reviews and local
child safeguarding practice reviews where domestic
abuse featured. It summarised the most common
themes that emerged in relation to multi- agency
safeguarding for children who are victims of
domestic abuse and includes examples of practice
and recommendations. Hammersmith & Fulham's
roll out of Safe and Together training was one of the
best practice examples included.

Page 34



Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 15

ChildQ

In December 2020, a 15 year old black girl endured
a traumatic strip search, whilst she was menstruating
by police officers who attended her school in
Hackney. The reason for this was that the schoolgirl
had been wrongly suspected of possessing cannabis.
The officers had been called in by school staff who
were not present during the intimate search. In

fact, there were no appropriate adults present, and
her parents were not informed by the school or by
the police. Child Q as she is known (to protect her
identity) felt traumatised after the search and has
required therapy since the event.

LSCP Response

LSCP held an extraordinary Forum to focus solely
on the issues raised by the review. The meeting
was well attended by key partners, including senior
officers from the Police. The LSCP was reassured
that relationships between schools and police
were sufficiently strong and supportive to enable
appropriate challenge between agencies, and that
safequarding policies and procedures are robustly

implemented.

The LSCP explored The Youth Voice
what training is Coordinator
provided to police assisted the LSCP to
officers and schools understand young
in relation to searches people’s views on
of children where this matter. These
drug possession is views underpinned
suspected. the focus of the

discussion at the
extraordinary Forum
meeting.

Page 35



16 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Neglect

Over the last 18 months, Hammersmith & Fulham
LSCP have robustly focused on the area of neglect,
following the deaths of Arthur Labinjo-Hughes and
Star Hobson. Understandable concerns were being
raised by Ministers, MPs, and the public as to how
these events could have happened.

The LSCP wanted to understand the local picture of
identification and response to neglect by individual
partners and jointly through multi-agency work.

At an extra-ordinary forum that was held in January
2022 it was agreed that the LSCP would complete a
multi-agency audit on neglect.

Learning from the audit

Schools safeguarding leads found to be a helpful
resource.

Improvement in communication would assist
relationships between schools and CYPS.

Good collaborative work focus between Adult
Social Care CYPS.

Information sharing good practice between Adult
Social Care and CYPS - but this needs continuous
focus.

Good examples of multi-agency work and
response to neglect in CYPS.

Consideration of children not attending school
and missing support on offer.

Persistent challenge to escalate neglect issues to
assessment.

Ensure non-engagement is challenged at the
earliest possible point.

Missing Education should be seen as a risk
factor of neglect not only of child's education
but as an indicator of wider issues in the home
environment.

Educational Neglect — this issue arose due to
difficulties in evidencing how it meets threshold
for statutory intervention.

Page 36

Recommendations/Next steps

Developing and implementing an aide memoir to
assist practitioners in identifying neglect.

Promoting the Think Family model of practice.

Convening a learning event on neglect for all our
partners to attend with key speakers.

Review and update the training offer on neglect.

Our Escalation Policies need to be strengthened,
and how we view and promote these across
agencies. Challenge is to be encouraged and is a
sign of a healthy system.

All agencies should ensure joint responsibility for
multi-agency action plans being conducive to
making an impact and that these are completed.
Responsibility should not be limited to those
which they lead upon.

Capturing the child’s voice — thinking about
what we see and what we say — observing
and recording any discrepancies picked up via
professional curiosity.

Police highlighted that it is important for them
to think about concerns raised by wider family
members.

Timely, multi professional considerations and risk
assessment when families decline supportive
services such as early help or do not engage as
expected. This should include whether escalation
is required.




Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 17

Everyone's Invited

Everyone's Invited is a website that was set up through the Barnardo’s contract in getting further
for victims and survivors of sexual assault and training for staff on harmful sexual behaviours,
harassment to anonymously share their stories. exploitation and online safety while also taking up
Since the 8 of March 2021, over 15,000 anonymous the offer for Barnardo's to offer learning to students
testimonies have been submitted, some of which through bespoke assemblies and Personal, Health,
have included the names of schools and education Social, Economic sessions.

settings.

' Vi e

e

=
— ]

A small number of local schools, including
maintained and the independent sector, were
named on the Everyone’s Invited website. Whilst
many of the testimonials on the website relate to
incidents that took place out of school in private
homes or elsewhere in the community, our local
education settings are key partners in helping to
develop safe spaces for children and young people.

Hammersmith & Fulham colleagues alerted the LSCP
following testimonials on the site naming a local
school. The website was shared with the London
Safeguarding Partnership who escalated the matter =
to the lead for Safeguarding in the Met Police who T
swiftly initiated a London wide police response.

g
*

. ey e ors toshare
The LSCP wrote to all schools to remind them of A place for survivers

their safeguarding responsibilities, the need to refer their stones. =

to Children'’s Services (including referrals to the Local i P
Authority Designated Officer (LADO) service) and pi { ™y
the police and signpost to the safegquarding support F Y ‘. v

on offer from Children’s Services and other partner
agencies.

et

The LSCP liaised with the Violence Against Women
and Girls Partnership (VAWG Partnership) in order

to develop an appropriate local response across
Hammersmith & Fulham and work in partnership
with local schools and colleges to strengthen the
development of a whole school approach to tackling
harmful sexual behaviours.

The Police Safer Schools officers offered a ‘Staying
Safe’ training package to schools impacted by
testimonials on the Everyone’s Invited website.
Schools have continued to keep the allegations of
sexual abuse, child on child abuse and harassment in
the forefront of how they work.

Schools have reviewed their policies in managing
these types of harms and behaviours, they have
continued to make sure students know how to
report these concerns and harms - giving students
various ways to do this and schools have engaged
with the offer from the safer school's police team’s
presentations. In addition, this topic continues to be
discussed as needed at the Designated Safeguarding
Lead networking forums and the Headteacher
forums. Some schools have also taken up the offer

Page 37



18 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Did you know?

Safer Schools Officers in the Police are linked to all
the secondary schools across the Partnership. Their
role is to:

Develop strategies to keep young people safe, in
partnership with the school.

Perform regular uniform patrols after school to
address, truancy, ASB and crime, working with
Safer Transport Teams and Safer Neighbourhood
Teams as required.

Make pupil referrals to intervention and diversion
schemes for the purpose of safeguarding the
child’s welfare and/or diverting them from
criminal activity/anti-social behaviour (ASB).

Participate in multi-agency case conferences for
students coming to notice.

Provide a visible and familiar point of contact with
their assigned school(s).

Gather and share information/intelligence in
relation to pupil behaviour linked to crime or
ASB, or for safeguarding in accordance with data
sharing agreements.

Advise Head Teachers and their staff on policing
issues and work in partnership to investigate
crime and deal with emerging issues.

Locally, the Local Authority Designated Officer
services and the Safeguarding Schools in Education
officers within children’s services have worked
closely with schools to review and respond to
disclosures made on the Everyone's Invited website,
The LSCP were reassured that there has been a
robust multi-agency response to any allegations
made.

The Designated Nurses also liaised with local health
providers to keep them updated with developments
about Everyone’s Invited and that there might

be an increase in young people coming forward

to help and support. The Designated Nurses
reminded providers of their responsibilities to follow
safequarding policies and procedures as normal and
to contact the Designated Nurses for Safeguarding
Children for additional advice and guidance where
needed.

The national response

At a national level, the DfE announced a new helpline
run by the NSPCC to support potential victims of
sexual harassment and abuse in education settings.
This helpline is open to both children and adults as
well as parents and professionals. Following advice
from the Metropolitan Police, the Everyone’s Invited
website was updated to include better signposting to
support and guidance to victims and survivors.

The government also asked Ofsted to undertake a
rapid review of sexual abuse in schools and colleges
which was published in June 2021 and outlined their
findings and recommendations.

Hammersmith & Fulham were visited by Ofsted in
September 2021as part of the annual engagement
process. The collaborative work on this subject was
well received by them. Verbal feedback was that
practice was multi-layered, wide-reaching, mature,
and intelligent. Hammersmith & Fulham'’s work has
also been mentioned by the Executive of the London
Safeguarding Children Partnership and has been
circulated across London as good practice.

Page 38



Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 19

=
=
=
=
-
=

(TR s

? P 5 - . - . 'i-‘_-.--
! _ . - A “‘ﬁl H' = :'..."-.F .- ﬁ f‘g ,-_- ;'- ". | = -
Awaab Ishak LSCP Response
LSCP Response: Public Health shared an information document
for families that detailed who to contact if they
The case of Awaab Ishak was tabled for discussion were concerned about damp and mould in their
at the LSCP Forum. The Partnership requested a properties. This was shared across the partnership
response from and has been shared as good practice in other local
. authorities.
LBHF Housing to understand to what extent damp
and mould issues existed in the Boroughs housing Housing works closely with colleagues in Adult Social
and what action was being taken to address any Care and the Children’s Service to ensure prompt
identified issues. communication where vulnerabilities are identified.
. Children’s Practitioners and families now have
Outcome: available to them clear instructions on what to do
The partnership heard that Hammersmith and and who to contact if they are concerned about
Fulham Housing have put in place clear policies and housing conditions that they believe are dangerous
are taking steps to identify and address any reported or unsafe for children and families.
concerns across their housing stock. The Council
has a Damp and Mould Action Group, chaired by Next Steps:

the Strategic Director, Economy and attended by the : , ; ' .
Director of Public Health and the Children's Head of ~ Housing will provide the LSCP with regular updates in
Early Help Family Support. Monthly reporting to the relation to their response to the concerns.

Senior Leadership Team on repairs includes updates

on damp and mould.

Page 39



20 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Afghan Evacuees:
Partnership Response

In August 2021, Hammersmith & Fulham welcomed
120 new residents from Afghanistan following

mass evacuation due to the collapse of the central
government in Afghanistan. In the following months,
69 more evacuees arrived in Hammersmith &
Fulham from surrounding boroughs. The 190 new
residents were placed in a bridging hotelin the
borough. Of these, 89 are children; 75 children

have been enrolled in schools, nurseries, or college,
including a further 30 children from a neighbouring
borough being placed at a secondary school in
Hammersmith & Fulham.

There has been a proactive, robust, partnership
response to supporting these families, which has
included:

Dedicated staff, including a practice nurse and a
Children’s Services representative, at the bridging
hotel available for wraparound support.

Staff have assisted residents in gaining access to
benefits and any further entitlements.

Supporting adults into additional training to help
secure employment.

Community and youth outreach through
extra-curricular programmes, such as women's
cooking groups, men’s football, and other
sporting activities, with sports equipment having
been donated from local charities, mosques, and
football clubs.

All families have been registered with local GP

surgeries, childhood immunisations have been
provided, and local dentists have provided free
dental examinations.

Families have had access to sessions at children’s
centres and have been able to engage in activities
over Christmas and after school.

Educational psychologists have provided
wraparound and network support to schools for
individual pupils and staff.

An educational offer for young people aged
16 and older was devised, including sourcing
appropriate courses for university level students.

Some families have already been offered more
permanent accommaodation.

The longer-term impact of this evacuation on
children and families is difficult to measure.
Nationally, some families remain in hotels and the
housing shortage across the country is causing
difficulties. There is also on-going resource pressure
for local services. Issues such as legal status, mental
health and resettlement plans continue to be the key
concerns amongst those evacuated. This subject
will be revisited to ensure we have a full update on
progress and impact.

Afghan Families Placed in H&F

B Adults

M 5 and under

M Between 6to0 10
M Between11to 15
M Between 16 to 18

Page 40



Hammersmith & Fulnam LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 21

Children’'s Mental Health

The LSCP is aware that there is increasing concern
about the mental health and wellbeing of children
and young people. Anxiety and depression are the
ones most frequently experienced by young people.

We know that mental health issues in childhood, if
left unaddressed, can extend into adulthood.

Improving and responding to children’s mental
health has been a priority focus across the
partnership and the number of children presenting
with mental health issue remains an area of
concern. Improving and responding to children's
mental health has been a priority focus across the
partnership and the number of children presenting
with mental health issue remains an area of
concern. Children & young people (CYP) have fed
back that they want to have easy access to mental
health support and understand what is available

to help them. Work is being undertaken on behalf
of the Forum by the partnership group, through
Youth Voice, Children in Care Council and Young
Hammersmith & Fulham Foundation. There is a
process of continuous feedback to and from children
and young people.

The Youth Council worked in co-production with
‘Healthwatch' to research young people’s access to
mental health services pre and post pandemic. They
designed and lead surveys and focus groups with
other young people, from which they co- produced
a series of recommendations compiled into a report
for commissioners and deliverers. A strategic group
has now been established led by the Integrated Care
Board, involving young people and key stakeholders
to review and action the recommendations.

In response mapping has been undertaken to
identify mental health resources and referral
pathways and is due to be published next year.

A heavy focus is therefore placed across services
on emotional resilience, prevention and early
intervention to work towards increasing children
and young people’s positive mental health. The
recommendations will be reviewed and feed into
the Children and Young People’s Early Intervention
Strategy.

The work of the LSCP in relation to the ‘David’
Serious Case Review demonstrates the collaborative
multi-agency work that has been undertaken in
relation partly to mental heath and well-being, as well
as learning disabilities and young people with autism.

There will also be an increased investment into Child
and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS)
provision to further expand capacity and expertise
with a view to improving access, experience,

and outcomes for CYP and resulting in fewer ED
presentations. Lastly, Mental Health Support Teams
(MHSTSs) have been placed in Schools across H&F
(11 primary schools, 12 secondary and 2 specialist
schools). MHSTSs carry out direct interventions with
CYP offer whole school approaches to better mental
health, and signpost and refer on to more specialist
provision.




22 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Safer Sleeping

Following the sad deaths of three babies in
Hammersmith & Fulham within a 6 months’ time
span, there became a need to reassess how safe
sleeping practice is promoted in the borough. As a
result, a task and finish group were initiated.

It was agreed to utilise the Lullaby Trust resources
which are comprehensive and supported by Public
Heath England (Office for Health Improvement &
Disparities), to support improved
promotion within the LSCP and
borough website.

Avideo link was to be made
available and information was
promoted widely in H&F across
the multi-agency network
including Children’s Social Care,
early years, children centres, and
GP waiting rooms, to ensure that
the same message is provided to
parents and carers.

Page 42



Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 23

Youth Voice

Hammersmith and Fulham’s Youth Council is

an elected group of young people aged 13 to 19
who live, work or study or are looked after by the
borough.

lts purpose is to give young people a 'voice' thatis
listened to by decision makers and to involve young
people in decisions about issues and services that
affect them.

Youth Voice also work closely with The Young
Hammersmith and Fulham Foundation. Thisis a
charity that supports opportunities for young people
in Hammersmith & Fulham in collaboration with its
Members, partners, and supporters.

The Youth Council is passionate about many things
and as there are a significant number of boards
seeking youth participation, a strategic group has
been developed, which includes the LSCP. The
purpose of this strategic group is to assist in mapping
and identifying any gaps across the partnership. Itis
important young people know their voice is making
an impact and the current focus is around co-
production and to have young people fully involved
in policy making right from the beginning.

Some of the main areas young people wish to focus
on as priorities include:

Sexual Health
Relationships
Staying safe within the borough
Mental Health

Young people attend the Corporate Parenting Board
alongside councillors, managers and officers with
the service. These meetings give young people

the opportunity to ask guestions and respond to
developments and various areas of improvement
across the service in relation to the 3 priorities for the
young people:

Settled and Belonging
Safe, Happy and Healthy
Thriving Adults

The Children in Care Council and Care Leavers have
also worked alongside the Corporate Parenting
Board to co-design the New Pathway Plan. A Young
Inspector Programme has also been established with
young people receiving training to inspect and co-
produce recommendations to improve the services
they receive including those provided by Centre
Point.

Page 43



24 | Hammersmith & Fulnam LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Youth voice is highly valued by young people.
They are regularly consulted and involved in
decision making and some positive examples of
co-production are taking place with young people
throughout the borough.

Youth Voice have worked collaboratively to further
strengthen, streamline and expand the reach and
impact and to embed co-production with young
people as the way we do things. The strategic
group worked in collaboration with Youth Council,
to review youth voice arrangements, develop

recommendations and a clear governance process.

Some of the ways Youth Voice have promoted
awareness of services to young people include:

Influencing various strategies, Arts & Culture,
Industrial & Hate Crime.

Increasingly diverse and representative Youth
Council.

Successful Youth Cabinet Election- Over 3000
votes electing a diverse youth cabinet.

Youth Voice Champion Role adopted by strategic
boards and partnerships.

Launch of the co-produced Youth Voice Strategy,
Principles & Priorities.

Diverse youth panels involved in interviewing
CHS staff- including the Director of Education
and the LSCP Business Manager.

The LSCP places high value on children and young
people’s views and is committed to ensuring that
they feel valued and heard. One way in which this
has been achieved is through collaboration in the
development of the "Youth Champion’ role, to ensure
children and young people have an active voice

in the Forum and subgroups and are involved in
decision making, scrutiny and challenge. Additionally,
a 360¢2 feedback loop and a 'you said, we did’
approach has been developed and ensures that
children and young people are aware of the actions
that have been taken in response to the issues they
have raised and the impact this has had.

Young people have provided feedback to the LSCP
in relation to Child Q. They provided challenge to
the LSCP and requested reassurance that something
like this wouldn't happen in H&F schools. Following
the work undertaken by the Partnership in relation
to Child Q, feedback and reassurance was provided.
This is one example of how children and young
people are providing a ‘check and challenge’role.




Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 25

LSCP Learning
& Development

The Learning and Development Advisory Group is
attended by the key partners from Hammersmith
& Fulham and representatives from the Bi-Borough
LSCP. This subgroup is responsible for developing
and delivering the LSCP training programme,
ensuring learning from local and national reviews

and audits is disseminated across the partnership and

promoting best practice.

The LSCP training programme continues as a
shared collaboration with the LSCP for Kensington
and Westminster (Bi-Borough). The multi-agency
safeguarding children training programme is
administered by the Bi-Borough LSCP on behalf of
both LSCP's. Training opportunities are available to
practitioners and volunteers working across both
LSCP footprints.

The table below outlines some of the core
safeguarding children’s workshops that were
delivered between April 2021 and October 2022 and
the number of colleagues based in Hammersmith

& Fulham, who attended. This included colleagues
from health, education, voluntary sector, police and
the local authority.

Workshop Title Number of  Attendees

workshops  working
across H&F

Multi-Agency 39 414

Safeguarding and

Child Protection

Safer Recruitment 7 6/

Meet the LADO 7 18

Safeguarding 7 19

Children: Domestic

Abuse and Coercive

Control

In addition to the core workshops above, further
workshops were offered covering more specialist
topics including:

Harmful Practices (forced marriage, FGM, Faith
Based Abuse and So-Called Honour Based
Abuse)).

Understanding Child Trafficking and Modern
Slavery.

Child Sexual Abuse.
Gang Awareness.

MARAC briefings.

&y
(4

In May 2022, the LSCP also collaborated with the
Met Police to deliver a joint Modern Slavery and Child
Exploitation workshop for police and social care
practitioners across the Central West BCU footprint.
This was well attended by over 70 local practitioners,
over half of which were from the Police.

In spring 2022, the LSCP was funded by the then
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to deliver
some bitesize workshops on Understanding
Resilience and Enhancing Well-being; Domestic
Abuse and Coercive Control and Think Family. These
workshops were offered to practitioners working
across the children’'s and adult's workforce and were
well attended.

The LSCP continues to monitor training evaluations
received from delegates in order to quality assure
the content and delivery of our programme. In
addition, the LSCP hosts regular ‘'mystery shopping’
activities with members of the Partnership, who
are encouraged to share their perspectives on

the content of the training and how well they are
delivered.

In 2023/24, the Learning & Development subgroup
will be undertaking a training needs analysis to help
shape the training programme. A Safer Organisations
learning event will be held in 2023 to further upskill
local organisations on best practice regarding
safequarding policies and procedures, safer
recruitment and maintaining a culture of vigilance.

Following the Child Q Safeguarding Practice Review,
the LSCP will be commissioning training on the topic
of Adultification to address the issue of children of
black or multiple ethnic backgrounds being viewed
as adults rather than children.

Page 45



26 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Health

CCG and Move to ICB

What was once eight NWL CCGS joined and became
one on April 1, 2021, as part of the implementation

of the ambition of NHS Long Term Plan (2019). This
was in preparation of being an Integrated Care Board
(ICB) as of July 2022.

This merger aims to reduce competition and
increase collaboration to reducing inequalities in
access to health services and delivering equality of
outcome.

Training

Within the health system, though the impact of

the pandemic continued to be felt with respect

to training, health providers continue to try and
implement innovative means of ensuring staffs are
trained including use of hybrid training, webinars with
staffs continuing to access the LSCP training as well.

These and the usage of training passports, which
allows prior learning to be recognised when staffs
move organisations, should enable improvements.

IRIS project

The commissioning of the IRIS project by MOPAC
was extended to March 31, 2022. The aim of the
project was to promote and improve Primary Care’s
recognition and response to gender-based violence
and subsequent referrals of the same.

Local GP practices have reported that they have
found that the training they had received "helped
improve my confidence in discussing with patients’
and have also reported that the advice and support
that they receive from IRIS to be invaluable.

22 practices (81%) have been fully IRIS accredited
(‘[domestic abuse aware practice’) with 159 clinical
staff and 112 non-clinical staff fully trained and
able to refer onto a domestic abuse service.

Total referrals in LBHF from Q4 2020/21 - Q4
21/22: 98 referrals an increase of 92 referrals
before the project commenced.

38% of the total patients referred in Hammersmith
had children under the age of 18.

10 high risk MARAC referrals identified by the
domestic abuse worker as a result of the patient
being referred to the service by their GP.




Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 27

LADO Summary

The Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO)
works within Children’s Services and gives advice
and guidance to employers, organisations and other
individuals who have concerns about the behaviour
of an adult who works with children and young
people.

In the financial year reporting period from April 2021
to March 2022 the LADO service received a total of
212 contacts, 92 of which resulted in a referral. This
was an increase in the number of referrals received in
2021-22.

Of the 92 referrals, 54 proceeded to the full
allegations process, 9 progressed to an evaluation
meeting and concluded with no further action,

8 were referred to the correct local authority, 24
reached a conclusion of no further action with
advice given as needed.

Out of the 54 allegations that met the threshold, 46
proceeded to Allegations against Staff and Volunteers
(ASV) meetings and investigations were completed.
The following outcomes were reached: 21 were
substantiated, 11 unsubstantiated, 5 were false, 1 was
malicious and 8 were unfounded. 5 cases remained
open at the end of this reporting period.

Of the 46 investigations, 19 had police involvement.
Out of those 19, 16 reached an outcome of No
further action (NFA) by the police. Reasons for

"
e

A

T ¥ i S
NG L
!E.}‘:ie B

NFA, can vary from insufficient evidence or the
victim or their parents not wanting to engage in

the prosecution process. Additionally, the Criminal
Prosecution Services may deem that there is
insufficient evidence to prosecute. One case
progressed to court and achieved a successful
prosecution. Police investigations continue in two
cases. The Allegations process has been completed
on these cases. The allegations have been
substantiated and are not reliant on the outcome of
criminal proceedings.

These outcome figures highlight that that
organisations in the borough are managing
allegations appropriately and referring correctly as
per the LADO process.

Where a safequarding concern is not the fault of

an individual staff member but instead in relation to
poor policies or practises in the organisations then
we use our Safer Organisations remit to support the
organisation to improve its safeguarding practises.

Outside of managing allegations, the LADO service
supports the delivery of Safer Recruitment and Meet
the LADO training for the LSCP. The H&F LADO
service is part of the London LADO network.

Page 47



28 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Final thoughts from the Chair

In my opening remarks, | mentioned the LSCP’s
progress since its inception and our collective efforts,
as shown in the report, to reduce the risk of harm to
the children and young people of the borough.

| said that in compiling this report, we have taken
note of the guidance produced by the Child
Safeguarding Practice Review Panel. | believe that
the examples of several different safeguarding
interactions by LSCP members show the impact of
our work.

The case study of Ryley following the tragic death
of Adam, demonstrate our innovative response to
problems of youth violence which are sadly all too
prevalent in society today.

Our work in the specialist area of autism as
highlighted by case of David, necessitated challenges
to ministers and NHS England as well as local service
providers over a long period of time. Our persistence
and determination mean that we now have a
bespoke service designed around the needs of

each child not the other way round. | am proud that
Hammersmith & Fulham is now recognised as one
of the leading partnerships in England for helping
children with autistic behaviours.

We have also challenged the Metropolitan Police
about the local response to the strip searching of
children after the publication of the Child Q LSCPR.
The annual report describes our work into neglect
following the tragic murders of Arthur and Star; both
in terms of challenge and case audit so that we can
better understand the local response.

The report outlines other significant pieces of work;
our response to the national concerns raised by the
publication of the findings of the ‘Everyone’s Invited’
website, the response by housing providers to the
tragic death of Awaab Ishak and our humanitarian
interventions for the Afghan evacuees who arrived
on the borough with little time for preparation in the
summer of 2021.

Finally, it is also important that we include as far as
possible, the voice of the child as exemplified by the
Ryley case study.

The role of the LSCP is to provide reassurance that
everyone working with children and young people in
Hammersmith & Fulham is operating as effectively as
possible to keep our children and young people safe
from harm.

| hope that the examples of our work give you that
reassurance.

Mike Howard
Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Chair

Page 48



Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 29




30 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Appendix 1:

LSCP Timeline of progress

Hammersmith & Fulham April 2021 —December 2022

L Radgaarag
Chilsrey Forradiig

Pt
. ‘

April 2021

HF LSCP isformed

Mike Howard is appointed as

Independent Chair. Cat Miller
appointed as interim Business
Development Manager.

27 April 2021

‘David’ Serious Case Review
Published

This was the case of a 17 year old
looked after young person who
was involved in a very serious
assault on a young six-year-old
child.

5 May 2021

First Executive Board Held

All three strategic leads met to set
the direction and agree terms.

20 May 2021

First LSCP Forum held

Terms of reference and
Arrangements Document shared
for sign off by the Partnership.

May 2021

Everyone’s Invited Discussion

Themed discussion led by the
Operational Director Children and
Young People’s Services.

21 June 2021

Case Review Group: first
meeting held

Case review procedure
document was reviewed by
participants and the SCRs Action
Plans were discussed.

15 July 2021

LSCP Forum Held
Key Discussion points included:

Everyone's Invited, updates

on Youth Participation, and

new practice emerging to
safeguarding adolescents in H&F.

19 July 2021

‘Adam’ Serious Case Review
published

Serious case Review undertaken
regarding the murder of Adam’in
March 2019.

21 July 2021

Safeguarding Children
Partnership Group Meeting held

An operational quarterly meeting
which is well attended by a range
of professionals.

4 August 2021

Housing Summit Held

A multi-agency response to the
‘Adam’ SCR to review the local
offer to families who are at risk of
extra-familial harm and are often
placed out of the borough.

23 September 2021

LSCP Forum Held

A presentation was delivered

by Alice Hendy on her suicide
prevention tool, R:pple. We

also heard about how the local
policeare safequarding children in
our community.

Page 50

28 September 2021

Case Review Group held

A 'deep dive’ of the Adam Action
Plan and Findings were carried
out. A discussion regarding Safer
Sleeping was held following the
death of a baby in H&F.

21 October 2021

Executive Board Meeting

The Strategic Partners met and
heard updates on the SCR Action
Plans and Everyone’s Invited.

17 November 2021

Housing Summit Held

The progress of the task and finish
group was explored; particularly
the development of a risk
assessment tool across the multi-
agency.

30 November 2021

Safeguarding Partnership Group
held
Updates given regarding current

issues being faced by practitioners
in H&F

16 December 2021

LSCP Forum Held

Each agency reviewed their
practice and response to the issue
of neglect, following the murders
of Arthur Labinjo-Hughes and Star
Hobson.

20 January 2022

Safeguarding Partnership Held
Updates heard regarding current

issues being faced by practitioners
in H&F.



Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 31

24 January 2022

LSCP Extraordinary Forum held

Extra Forum held to specifically
focus on issue of Neglect,
following highly publicised cases
of the murders of Arthur Labinjo-
Hughes and Star Hobson.

3 February 2022

Case Review Meeting Held
Key points raised included:

The Rapid Review process, SCR
Action Plan, and progress on Safer
Sleeping for parents & infants.

24 February 2022

LSCP Forum Held

Annual reports from the LADO
and NWL CCG were discussed:;
Young people’s mental health
was discussed at length following
a video produced by the Youth
Council.

March 2022

LSCP & SAB Joint Workshops
Through March, workshops were
held with funding from the CCG
on cross-cutting themes such as
Think Family, Domestic Abuse.

5 April 2022

Safeguarding Partnership Group
Meeting

Themes included: Neglect, the
LADO annual report, ASE Parent/
Carer Champions.

10 May 2022

LSCP Executive Board Meeting
ltems discussed:
« ChildQ.

« NWL CCG funded training
offer.

» Inspection preparations.

19 May 2022

LSCP Forum held

Agenda items included:

» Updates on both SCR's.

» Updates from Subgroups.
» Ukrainian Refugees.

« Child Q.

23 June

LSCP Quiality, Performance and
Challenge Subgroup

Key Points:

e Terms of Reference Schedule
of work.

« MA Neglect Audit.
e Sec 11 Audits.

12 July 2022

Multi-Agency Audit on Neglect
started

Questions and format of audit
were agreed. Representatives

across different services were

appointed and work began.

14 July 2022

Safeguarding Partnership Group
Meeting

ltems discussed included:
Children held overnight at Police
Stations. Summer activities for

children, Notting Hill Carnival
plans.

14 July 2022

Rapid Review held —Child K

First H&F LSCP Rapid Review held.
This was well attended across the
multi-agency partnership.

27 Sept 2022

Plenary meeting for Multi-
Agency Neglect Audit

All those involved in the MA Audit
met to discuss and compare
results of audits and consider
keythemes emerging.

Page 51

6 October,2022

LSCP Forum meeting

Key issues raised:

Elective Home Education —
safeguarding presentation,
children affected by domestic
abuse.

3 November 2022
Safeguarding Partnership Group
Meeting

Main Points:

» Professional challenge and
escalation.

e Timescales for ICPC:s.

» Concerns re children vaping,
children’s mental health.

10 November,2022

Case Review Subgroup Meeting

Discussed JAR updates, progress
on the Rapid review, updates on
both SCR Action Plans.

14 November,2022

Sec 11 Working Group meeting

The Working Group met to
discuss terms, and agree
guestions and devise survey.

9 December,2022

Learning and Development
Subgroup Meeting

The Multi-Agency Neglect Audit
results were discussed and agreed
how these would be shared.

Training Needs Analysis roll out
agreed.

15 December,2022

LSCP Forum
Topics included:

« Safeguarding implications from
death of Awaab Ishak.

» National Panel Briefing on
domestic abuse, ICS changes.

« YJS Inspection outcome.



32 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Appendix 2:

‘David’ Serious Case Review

A Case Study: ‘Logan’

Background information

Logan was discussed in the Dynamic Support
Register (DSR) meeting. He was under the care of
West London Health Trust.

Logan was placed under Section 20 of the Children
Act, by a Local Authority (LA) outside London.

The Social Worker was invited to the Dynamic
Support Register (DSR) meeting.

There were concerns raised by Mental Health

Professionals regarding escalating behavioural issues.

Logan had a diagnosis of high functioning Autism
Spectrum Disorder with a significant history of self
harm.

Mental Health Professionals brought the case to the
DSR meeting to share concerns about escalating
behaviours and urgent need for placement.

Logan had already been arrested for a serious crime
that could have endangered lives of others.

Background information

A safeguarding professional who attended the
meeting for observation was struck by the similarities
between David and Logan’s experiences. Logan was
receiving 3:1 staffing due to the assessed level of

risk when he moved boroughs. This was reduced to
2:1/24 hour care after settling in his new borough.

Secure accommodation was considered but it was
ruled out because of Logan's age. Legal advice
was sought with the Local Authority Team and the
threshold for secure placement was not met.

All professionals agreed that an escalation to senior
leaders was required to ensure that Logan was kept
safe.

Similarities between David and Logan

Young person with Autism.

No mental illness diagnosis.

No Learning Disability.

Concerns about possible Personality Disorder
Behaviour problems.

Criminal activities with serious crime allegations.
Need for therapeutic placement.

Placement breakdowns.

Age and gender.

Risk of harm to self and others.

Key learning points from the findings:

Finding 1-Gap of support for children with Autism
without additional disabilities: Logan would have
been easier to manage if he had a diagnosis of
Mental lllness. This is purely based on service
provision.

Finding 2-Lack of residential treatment options for
young people with high risk behaviours & emerging
personality disorders: There was an exploration of
secure placement for Logan. The Local Authority
legal team, advised that the threshold would not be
met mainly due to his age.

Finding 3-Disincentives to escalate service gaps
creating unmet need: Escalation of case was
important. Although there was no clear escalation
policy or procedure, the need for escalation

was recognised. The DSR meeting created a
platform where the case could be discussed. The
engagement of a safeguarding lead from health
provided the support to staff in escalating the case
for immediate attention to decision makers.

Page 52



Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 33

Finding 5- Limits of health and Social Care
integration at individual case management level:

The DSR meeting presented a platform for case
discussion and management of actions from
discussions. Health Practitioners were able to bring
the case forward for discussion. Following escalation
to senior individuals, several multi-professional
meetings were set up and held to ensure that Logan
was placed in a therapeutic placement, with reduced
risk of harming others.

Outcomes and Impact

Logan is reported to be well settled now. He is in
receipt of the therapeutic services required to enable
him to live a better life. There haven't been any
further safeguarding concerns highlighted - including
Nno need to settle in another home.

Collective risk assessments led to collective risk
management planning. There was further intensive
work by professionals to work through risks during
the transfer processes.

There was clear communication amongst
professionals and agencies. This was led by
professionals working with Logan. Professionals were
fully supported by Safeguarding Children Leads and
their managers.

The process kick started a multi-agency transition
planning led by the Local Authority as Adult Social
Care was engaged and working seamlessly.

Professionals are aware of Logan's vulnerabilities and
needs, should there be any further incidents of risk to
self and others

As Logan is still considered high risk for admission, he
remains on the DSR of the placing LA.

What we could do better

Finding 6- Absence of Quality Assurance for joint
assurance scrutiny of case across the ICS and LA

Although there may not be clear partnership
between agencies in Ealing, including senior LA
managers, a platform for scrutiny and quality
assurance is beneficial

The safeguarding element of the DSR could be
improved. This is currently being reviewed by the
ICS Safeguarding Team.

Page 53



34 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Appendix 3:
Contact List for Housing Repairs

For NHS professionals
H&F GPs and NHS professionals:

Easy guide to housing and jobs (Economy Directorate) London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham

Type of query

Who can you ask for help?

Email

Telephone

Damp and mould in a council
property

Head of Repairs is

lead liaison is

Capital works engagement
manager

The Economy Department
Hammersmith & Fulham Council

Please put ‘GP/NHS Enquiry’ at the
start of all subject headings

Repairs in a council property

Head of Repairs is

lead liaison is

Capital works engagement
manager

The Economy Department
Hammersmith & Fulham Council

Please put ‘GP/NHS Enquiry’ at the
start of all subject headings.

Damp and mould in private rented
property

Initial approach to landlord

LBHF private housing team can
support with enforcement action

Private Housing Team

Please put ‘GP/NHS Enquiry’ at the
start of all subject headings.

Patient asks for a letter to support
councilhousing application

The housing register: Medical
assessment | LBHF

This outlines all the banding
information, so that as NHS
professionals you know which
information is helpful.

Please read the guidance on the

link. The form is the responsibility
of the housing applicant to
complete but will require
supporting information from their
medical professional. For help
email

Please put ‘GP/NHS Enquiry’ at the
start of all subject headings.

If you need extra help, call

To escalate a query contact

Housing Solutions Senior
Officer

Patient seeking employment
support or training opportunities
via the council’s job brokerage
team

Refer patient to the council jobs
brokerage team WorkZone | LBHF

Page 54




Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 35

Additional housing information

Some patients may live in social or council housing,
whilst others may live in private rented housing.

People in either of these tenancies may claim
support to help them pay their rent — this could be
either through housing benefits, or universal credit.

How the rate is calculated differs slightly
dependent on the type of tenancy.

For example:

In social and council housing, housing benefit
is calculated on actual rent plus service charges
(as well as spare rooms, income, and personal
circumstances).

In private rented housing, housing benefits is
calculated on the Local Housing Allowance
rate or actual rent — whichever is lower (as
well as spare rooms, income and personal
circumstances).

Helpful links on benefits:

Housing Benefit: What you'll get:
GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

Housing costs and Universal Credit:
GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) Benefits | LBHF

The benefits cap does not apply if:
Benefit cap:

When you're not affected:
GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

You're not affected by the cap if you're over State
Pension age. If you're part of a couple and one of
you is under State Pension age, the cap may apply.
You're also not affected by the cap if you or your
partner:

Get Working Tax Credit (even if the amount you
getis £0).

Get Universal Credit because of a disability or
health condition that stops you from working (this
is called ‘limited capability for work and work-
related activity).

Get Universal Credit because you care for
someone with a disability.

Get Universal Credit and you and your partner
earn £617 or more a month combined, after tax
and National Insurance contributions.

You are also not affected by the cap if you, your
partner, or any children under 18 living with you gets:

Armed Forces Compensation Scheme.
Armed Forces Independence Payment.
Attendance Allowance.

Carer's Allowance.

Child Disability Payment.

Disability Living Allowance (DLA).

Employment and Support Allowance (if you get
the support component).

Guardian’'s Allowance.

Industrial Injuries Benefits.

Personal Independence Payment (PIP).
War pensions.

War Widow's or War Widower's Pension.

Page 55



36 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Appendix 4: CCG Joint Funding-Training

LSOP = Ay 1 SCP ==

Safeguarding Partnerships Spring 3022
Bitesize workshops!

Tew kol [N L E 4]

Pt ghafn e el [T T il Je e g S Ll o Ty
e A Sods e C e sy e sesseewh & Fubuee
Fabeanecn W [ s B W

Tre ginraps wm Fues o s G s mus el B re shoen o e
O DTS 33 DA 10 M

Faigs o8 T L e i roe ek o pae

Unsderafanding Restiamnce and Enhancing Well baing
warkahops [2 ROurs - vis Zoom)

o - P e S A B |

I8 mrery Dot roren

D o T el Wog i (o ol ] el iy [T
il o v Tl MO D T Bl ST O S i O DT 0
TORTTE F WP il o D ST

n P e oF el e W g i W0 e s

n e e B L o e (e

= [DegEry FmEmras O rrhen we oranme el e s o
[ k]

B Liime eeTouaed 0 HgET oo D el e ae ey

[ EER

u Wiantely O™ WSR-S b
v ey e akadn - e e
v Torslay 27 SR - HaE o |2pe

Tl Gl [ (RN T P S

bips siars syeeviwys py e g S e s sy e e Sy
Fe TR T T

=
H

F

Domastic Sbusie and Coarchae Conlrel warkahaps
2.5 haurs- oaling via ME Teama)

Qusysimdiy TRy Lapran

o

s il e ondtriend Laechey o Soreate gt ond coenoer oontrol
n  Piniy o [iFrpiar & ey il o Pl
v Dl B e WL b e

4wl SN PR Rk

Dt
w ik 1 daem 385 b M = 17 i
n TR T M 20T B 0 - 12 D0
a P Wah N Ipr - 8 ¥iges or
L,

i Tk 3 4F W SETOD DO OGN
PRI T TR Dy SPRRET ] B

+ Fraimg 1 lers 80T - s - pm o
4 Tiommieltay) of i) MG O 1 e
u Fruig G ied T507 = i = 139

B Bt il [l - ] oyl B b
e ity e, 0 L S N N S LT T
H

By i g e
flep iy el

Page 56




Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 — December 2022 | 37

I-- 1- .-. _ .I.- ; ..“

Joint Modern Skavery snd Child Exploftaton WorksRap
o Pollcs and Children's Social Care
g DSy

= Tz B-sns F Eomre Daceny Chin Lipemdnien A Tofeoeg Coorhy
Lewy. Drpmrmad werepradon [ries | Cracospsrsd e oo

& Tn g pe ey i e Py peeoe Tl B oopapdtee Kool

= T I o T e Rt b e b D48 ol me
Viceler: Jwearp dcd

= [rocswgs secers moneeg Boen —oegers
= R R O T R b ST g R - e b g

= DRI, TR DPEECEE DR ERTY GEAT § SOl TR B e

= IrHCE - -mE e - B TR ik
LIl ATy FETAN O -TEE TR B e o o T
A, R T

= Dol P O O B RS e R
= Ffao os Do OCE EFRCLCE

vfintuin] il 10 i e e B it i i T S W
- A D e s a
iy b, Lavly Sl DL BFOPLT CEM DY O

Wien Goredey 10 Vay 23730 e dpe
WPt Lo il Sl G TR Bl B BEeE L ondet WA SRR
[ - HEE TR PR R S

e R e L]

Page 57



38 | Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022

Index
A F
Adam 312, Forum 6, 15.
Afghan Evacuees 20.
Arthur Labinjo-Hughes 41030. Q
Awaab Ishak 19,31, Gangs, Violence and Exploitation Unit (GVEU) ».
B H
Brent 8 Hammersmith & Fulham 135892328
Hammersmith & Fulham Local Safeguarding
C Children Partnership 3.
Case Review Group 6. Rl 6,21, 2.
Chair 34628 H&F LSCP 10,14, 31.
Clreleen 3 Hounslow 8.
Child K 31
Child Q 5ol
Children and Social Work Act 3. Independent Scrutiny
Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel 3 Initial Contact Advice Team (ICAT)
@S 16.
K
D Kensington 3
Damp and Mould Action Group 19
David 313 L
Designated Nurses 1418, Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO VA
Development Advisory Group 6,725  Local Practice Review /
DfE 18 Local Safeguarding Children Partnership (LSCP) £
Domestic Abuse 14, Local Safeguarding Children's Board (LSCB) 3.
Dynamic Support Register 1332, Logan 13,32, 35
LSCP 3,567 14,15 28 30.
E LSCP Subgroups /
Ealing 8 33.
Early Help Family Support 19 N
Everyone's Invited N Els L2023 154
Executive Board G ISP CE Sld)

Page 58



Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP Annual Report April 2021 - December 2022 | 39

o Y
Ofsted 9. Youth Voice 15,21,23 24,
Oliver McGowan 15
Operation Cavell 13
P

Partnership 1,36, 20.
Police 15
Public Health 19
R

Rapid Reviews 10.
Ryley 28.
S

s11 of the Care Act 3.
Safeguarding Children Partnership Group 6, 30.
Safeguarding Forum 4.
Safer Schools Officers 18.
Safer Sleeping 22,30, 31.
Serious Case Reviews 542,
Star Hobson 4,10, 30, 31.
T

The Children Act 2004 /.
The National Child Safeguarding Practice Review
Panel 10.
Tri-Borough 3.
w

Wandsworth 8.
West London Health Trust 32.
Working Together 2018 X

Page 59



www.lbhf.gov.uk

www.lbhf.gov.uk/children-and-young-people/local-safeguarding-children-partnership/
about-hf-local-safeguarding-children-partnership

Page 60

LBHF0266. 2023. Images from Shutterstock


https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/children-and-young-people/local-safeguarding-children-partnership/about-hf-local-safeguarding-children-partnership
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/children-and-young-people/local-safeguarding-children-partnership/about-hf-local-safeguarding-children-partnership

r .\ ‘|
r b
d - b
. o) "
- v
L, ' ' 4 4 | - > .
> R (e < T .
i A b \ - .- e
e L .’ v . o sivigy.
> ¢ v e ‘ > 3
1 » ™ s : 'Y : o
E v’ oy 20 4 32 5 W ': /
2 i 7 PRI -
: P > 3=, e . Y
5 7 'y L - b - .
; P L -9
L4 / o
A it v
3 -l % 3 o ’ - \ £
S . f p ;. \ 5
‘ ] gy & Pyl i e N
4 L - ¥ g
/ B . e L& / .
A * - 7~ I -~ y
! =Y s . 4 \
'/ i e \ v, > ¥ -
! ! ' \ - / / #
\ on \ .
' 5 {1/ 3/ o y;
1), 4 - - |
7 \ o» Ay
/ \ )!.' s A - s s -
= A - - I
W

hammersmith & fulham

LMP ACTION

COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY

ummer in the City
2023 &

CEPAC




Holiday Activity and Food (HAF)

Summer in the City is the highlight of our HAF

programme. Delivering enriching activity and
food across school holidays. We recently

recommissioned Let Me Play to coordinate our
HAF programme for the next 2 years.

We aim to deliver a vibrant offer to children and
young people that offers opportunities for
connection, variety of experience, some much
heeded fun and a celebration around food.




Since Easter 2021 we've had:

3,759 unique

children and 55,283
attendances

young people

61,129 meals 30 local

served providers

6,767 hours 67% of
attendees

of delivery eligible for FSM




Summer in the City 2023

- 5 weeks of provision for school aged children
- Supporting up to 1,200 children per week

- Provision assessed to ensure we have a diverse
range of high quality provision across the
borough.

- All offering enriching activity, physical activity,
nutritional education and food

- Includes provision for care leavers, children
who’ve faced crisis and children with significant
SEND requirements

- Free for residents to access




A record 29 providers including:
Mother and Child h &ffk '

-

et b Shepherds Bush Families Project
arerscore & Children’s Centre

BASKETBALL

\4by

G9 abed

action on
disability

Life beyond barriers

URBAN
ELYERS

N|OU
U

5 \ MASBRO YOUTH CLUB
7,
L0
A

00000000

FILM

OO0O0skooLO

é— /
S

Welfare Organisation
CREATING A BRIGHTER TOMORROW

The voice of

learning disability
P&

LMP ACTION

Ominira

hammersmith & fulham

DANCEWEST.

cap W T

Acknowledging Youths CIC

WHITE CITY
THEATRE

PROJECT

KULAN FOUNDATION

Urbanwise
.London

THE HARROW CLUB

p

LONMDON SPORTS



Summer Events

As well as our weekly provision we have:

Picnic in the Park Launch Event
Saturday the 15th July 12-3pm - Ravenscourt Park

Free Family Event
« Activities - Inflatables/Dance/Yoga/Boot Camp
« Smoothie bikes
e Balloon animals
* Free food and drink
« Nutritional activities
 Music
« Information stalls

Uniformed Services Week

August 14th to August 18th - Ravenscourt Park

« 5 Days of uniformed services engagement

« Army, Navy, Coldstream Guards & Police have confirmed

« Discussing with St Johns Ambulance/RAF/Fire service cadets

Other activities in development (TBC):

Orchestra in the Park - English Chamber Orchestra
* Yoga in the Park - Goethe Institute
« Bike Maintenance
* Puppetry Workshops
« Nourish in the Park
* Youth Council ‘How you feel’ mural




Promotion

New HAF website launching soon

Flyers and brochures going to stakeholders in
Children’s and Family Services, Youth Council,
through School Zone, sent out with FSM
vouchers.

Flyers handed out at
Windrush Day: Shepherds Bush Green 22 June
Sports Tournament: South Park 23/24 June
Armed Forces Day: St Pauls Gardens 24 June

Banners being put up at parks

Postcards being sent to families with children
eligible for FSM




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 A Year of Youth Voice
	Appendix 1 - Youth Voice Presentation
	Slide 1:  A Year of Youth Voice  Presentation to CEPAC
	Slide 2: Just some… of the HIGHLIGHTS of 2022-23
	Slide 3:   Youth voice…. on OUR TERMS!
	Slide 4:     Arts & Culture Strategy Workshops and Youth Commissioning Panel
	Slide 5:         
	Slide 6
	Slide 7: Niamh’s year as Deputy & Youth Mayor
	Slide 8:         Anastasia Member of Youth Parliament 2022/23
	Slide 9: Next Steps
	Slide 10: Youth Voice Instagram page  https://www.instagram.com/h_f_youth/    For More information on Youth Voice and Youth Voice Calendar of Activities Hammersmith & Fulham Youth Voice | LBHF


	5 Local Safeguarding Children Partnership Annual Report
	Hammersmith & Fulham Local Safeguarding Children Partnership  Annual Report
	Contents
	Introduction
	Independent Scrutiny/ role  of the Chair
	What is a local safeguarding partnership?
	What is Safeguarding?
	What is the structure of Hammersmith & Fulham LSCP?
	LSCP Subgroups
	Key information about  Hammersmith & Fulham
	Learning from LSCPR’s and Rapid Reviews
	Serious Case Reviews
	‘Adam’ Serious Case Review
	‘David’ Serious Case Review

	LSCP Activities and progress
	Domestic Abuse

	Child Q
	Neglect
	Everyone’s Invited
	Awaab Ishak LSCP Response
	Afghan Evacuees:  Partnership Response
	Children’s Mental Health
	Safer Sleeping
	Youth Voice
	Health
	LADO Summary
	Final thoughts from the Chair
	Appendix 1:  LSCP Timeline of progress
	Appendix 2: ‘David’ Serious Case Review
	Appendix 3: Contact List for Housing Repairs
	Appendix 4: CCG Joint Funding-Training 
	Index

	6 Summer in the City 2023
	Slide 1
	Slide 2:   Summer in the City is the highlight of our HAF programme. Delivering  enriching activity and food across school holidays. We recently recommissioned Let Me Play to coordinate our HAF programme for the next 2 years.      We aim to deliver a vibr
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: A record 29 providers including:  
	Slide 6
	Slide 7: Promotion


